
 

 
i 

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA 
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD 
HAVANT 
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX 
 
Telephone: 023 9244 6019 
Website: www.havant.gov.uk 
 

 

Tuesday, 16 January 2024 
SUMMONS 

Dear Councillor 
 
You are requested to attend the following meeting:  
 
Meeting: Cabinet 

Date: Wednesday 24 January 2024 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Hurstwood Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road, Havant, 
Hampshire PO9 2AX 

 
The business to be transacted is set out below:  
 
Steve Jorden 
Chief Executive 
 

CABINET MEMBERSHIP 
 
Chairman: Councillor Rennie (Chairman) 
 
Councillors Robinson, Bowdell, Bowerman, Fairhurst and Lloyd 
 
 
Contact Officer: Jenni Harding 02392 446234 
 Email:  jenni.harding@havant.gov.uk 
 

AGENDA 
  Page  
PART 1 (Items open for public attendance) 
 

 
 
1  Apologies for Absence   

 
To receive and record any apologies for absence. 
  

 

 
2  Declarations of Interests   

 
To receive and record any declarations of interest from members 
present. 
  

 

 

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/


 

 
ii 

3  Minutes   
 
To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of Cabinet held on 20 
December 2023. 
  

1 - 4 

 
4  Chairman's Report   

 
To receive a report from the Chairman. 
  

 

 
5  Councillor Questions under Standing Order 68.3   

 
In accordance with standing order 68.3.1, to receive questions from 
the Chairman of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee and standing 
order 68.3.3, a period of 20 minutes is permitted to receive questions 
put to Cabinet by Councillors.   
  

 

 
Leader of the Council 
 

 
 
6  Disposal of Bulbeck Road Multi Storey Car Park   

 
5 - 28 

 
 



 

 
iii 

 GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR ANY 
OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, AUDIO OR IN 
ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT DEMOCRATIC 
SERVICES ON 023 9244 6019 
 
Internet 
 
This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant Borough 
Council website: www.havant.gov.uk 
 
Public Attendance and Participation 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and observe 
the meetings.  
 
The Council will endeavour to broadcast the meeting. However, please be aware 
that the meeting will continue, in the event of the broadcast failing at any time. The 
Councill will also endeavour to record the meeting and make the recording available 
to watch for up to six months from the date of the meeting. 
 
IP addresses will not be collected, however in order to function, Teams Live collects 
background data limited to when a user enters and leaves the meeting and the web 
browser version used. Data collected will be kept and recorded for the purposes of 
this meeting.  
 
Disabled Access 

 
The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled. 
 
Emergency Procedure 
 
Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits which are 
clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will sound. 
 
PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY. 
 
DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO 
 
No Smoking Policy 
 
The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its offices, 
corridors, meeting rooms and toilets.  
 
Parking 
 
Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park opposite the 
Plaza. 
 
 

http://www.havant.gov.uk/


 

 
iv 

 

Public 
Service 
Plaza



  1 
Cabinet 

20 December 2023 
 
 

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
At a meeting of the Cabinet held on 20 December 2023 
 
Present  
 
Councillor Rennie (Chairman) 
 
Councillors  Robinson, Bowdell, Bowerman, Fairhurst and Lloyd 
 
Assistant Cabinet Leads 
 
Councillors  Briggs, Richardson 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
 
Councillor(s): Harris 
 
49 Apologies for Absence  

 
There were no apologies for absence received for this meeting.  
 

50 Declarations of Interests  
 
There were no declarations of interests relating to matters on the agenda.  
 

51 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 08 November were approved as a 
true record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

52 Chairman's Report  
 
Councillor Rennie, the Chairman of Cabinet, reported that Steve Jorden, Chief 
Executive is recovering well and is expected to return in the New Year. 
Councillor Rennie further extended Cabinets’ best wishes. 
 

53 Councillor Questions under Standing Order 68.3  
 
There were no questions from Councillors under the provision of Standing 
Order 68.3. 
 

54 Matters referred by Full Council or the Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Under Standing Order 68.7.3  
 
There were no matters for Cabinet to consider under the provision of Standing 
Order 68.7.3. 
 

55 Cabinet Lead Delegated Decisions, Minutes from Meetings etc.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



  2 
Cabinet 

20 December 2023 
 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of meetings as set out in the agenda were noted. 
 

56 Finance System Replacement  
 
Councillor Bowdell, as relevant Cabinet Lead, introduced a report that, following 
an evaluation process, makes recommendations to award a contract for the 
future supply of our financial system from April 2025. 
  
A motion was proposed by Councillor Bowdell and seconded by Councillor 
Robinson to adopt the recommendations, for the reasons set out in the report.  
  
Cabinet discussed the motion, including the options available to Cabinet.  
  
Following a vote, it was, 

  
RESOLVED that Cabinet; 
  

a)    award the contract to TechnologyOne Limited to provide the 
replacement software for the Council’s Financial management system in 
line with the Crown Commercial Services G-Cloud 13 framework for (up 
to) 4 years at a cost of £105k per annum. 
  

b)    delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer (S151) in consultation 
with the Monitoring Officer to finalise and sign a contract with the 
preferred supplier. 

 
57 Quarter 2 Financial Report & Budget Monitoring  

 
On behalf of Councillor Bowdell, the relevant Cabinet Lead, Councillor 
Bowerman introduced a report which outlined the Councils’ financial health and 
estimates the final outturn could fall to under £500k overspend, as well as 
outlining the performance of the Council in quarter 2.  
  
A motion was proposed by Councillor Bowdell and seconded by Councillor 
Bowerman to adopt the recommendations set out, for the reasons set out in the 
report. 
  
Cabinet discussed the motion, including the options available to Cabinet.  
  
Following debate and a vote, it was  

  
RESOLVED that Cabinet note the; 
  
       i.          revenue forecast outturn for Q2 2023/24 (Appendix A) 
     ii.           Q2 2023/24 performance information (Appendix B) 
    iii.          Q2 2023/24 Capital Programme monitoring (Appendix C) 
    iv.          Q2 2023/24 Prudential Indicators (Appendix D) 

 
58 South Hayling Island Beach Management Plan  

 Page 2



  3 
Cabinet 

20 December 2023 
 
 
Councillor Fairhurst, as relevant Cabinet Lead, introduced a report which seeks 
a mandate to submit the Outline Business Case to the Environment Agency for 
approval, and to permit expenditure if approved to allow beach management to 
continue until 2029 on Hayling Island. 
  
A motion was proposed by Councillor Fairhust and seconded by Councillor 
Lloyd to adopt the recommendations set out for the reasons set out in the 
report.  
  
Cabinet discussed the motion, including the options available to Cabinet.  
  
Following debate and a vote, it was 

  
RESOLVED that Cabinet; 
  

a)    approved the recommendations of the South Hayling Beach 
Management Plan to implement a five-year programme of sustainable 
beach management activities to help reduce the risk of coastal flooding 
and erosion from the period 01 April 2024 to 31 March 2029, subject to 
securing the necessary funding. 
  

b)    noted the application for funding made to the Environment Agency under 
the Land Drainage Act (1991) to the value of approximately £5.1million 
of Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management (FCERM) Grant in Aid 
(GiA) to fund the five year Beach Management Plan programme. 
  

c)     delegated authority to the Executive Head of Coastal Partners, following 
consultation with the Cabinet Lead for Coastal and the S151 Officer, to 
implement the Beach Management Plan and subsequent activities, 
subject to securing the necessary funding. 

 
59 Procurement of new IT system for Planning, Environmental Health, 

Licensing and Grants  
 
Councillor Rennie reminded members that this item contained private and 
confident information in the appendix and therefore asked members to indicate 
by a show of hands, if they wished to discuss the exempt information.   
  
No members indicated a wish to discuss the exempt information and Councillor 
Lloyd as relevant Cabinet Lead introduced a report that, following a full open 
tender process exercise the Council is proposing to select ARCUS GLOBAL 
LIMITED to deliver two separate systems – a Generic Case Management 
system to support Environmental Health, Licensing and Grants and the Arcus 
Platform to support the Council’s Planning Service.  
  
A motion was proposed by Councillor Lloyd and seconded by Councillor 
Bowerman to adopt the recommendations set out for the reasons set out in the 
report.  
  
Cabinet discussed the motion, including the options available to Cabinet and 
officers responded to questions raised. Page 3



  4 
Cabinet 

20 December 2023 
 
 
  
Following a vote, it was 

  
RESOLVED that Cabinet 
  

a)    award a contract to Arcus Global Limited to provide the replacement 
software for the Council’s Planning Service for a period of five years at a 
cost of no more than £245,000. 
  

b)    award a contract to Arcus Global Limited to provide the replacement 
software for the Council’s Environmental Health, Licensing and Grants 
services for a period of five years at a cost of up to £225,000. 

  
c)     delegate authority to the Executive Head of Place in consultation with 

the Monitoring Officer and Section 151 officer to finalise and enter into a 
contract with the preferred supplier. 

 
60 Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 
There were none. 
 

 
The meeting commenced at 6.00 pm and concluded at 6.21 pm 

 
 
 

 
…………………………… 

 
Chairman 

Page 4



 
 
 
 

(1)  

Name of Committee: Cabinet  

Committee Date: 24th January 2024  

Report Title: Redevelopment of Bulbeck Road muti storey car park 

Responsible Officer: Wayne Layton, Executive Head of Regeneration, Economic 
Development and Preventative Services 

Cabinet Lead: Alex Rennie, The Leader of the Council 

Status: Non-Exempt 

Urgent Decision: No  Key Decision: Yes   

Appendices: Appendix 1 – Fabrik Sketch Book 

Background Papers: None   

Officer Contact: Name: Stuart Palmer 
Email: stuart.palmer@havant.gov.uk 

Report Number: HBC/ 

 

Corporate Priorities: 
The redevelopment of the Bulbeck Road multi-storey car park is a corporate priority 
project and demolition and disposal of the site will enable its delivery. 
 
It is within theme 3: Growth – Building our future. 
The aim - We will aim to enable and facilitate regeneration in our borough utilising all 
funding opportunities. 
The initiative - Progressing the regeneration of Bulbeck Road car park site 

 

Executive Summary: 
 
This paper sets out the following: 
 
➢ The advantages and disadvantages of the five development options of Bulbeck 

Road Car Park   
➢ Update on the headline commercial and utilisation of Bulbeck Road multi storey 

car park  
➢ Informs on the numbers of homes built from 2015 to 2021, as well as future 

forecasted housing needs in Havant. 
➢ What the DHLUC Brownfield Release Fund 2 (BLFR2) grant fund is for and what 

is in the grant agreement 
➢ Requests that advice is sought on disposal options to ensure best consideration 

is achieved.  

 
 

 

 
Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
 

(1)  

Recommendations: 
 

1) Demolish Bulbeck Road multi storey car park and undertake any required 
remediation works in advance of disposal and development of the site. 

 
2) To appoint an agent to advise on disposal options and conditions having regard 

to ensuring best consideration is obtained under s123 Local Government Act 
1972’.  
 

  

Page 6



 
 
 
 

(1)  

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Bulbeck Road Car Park was acquired by the Council as part of the 
£4.1m purchase of the Meridian Shopping Centre in 2019. It occupies 
0.31ha within Havant town centre. The 4-storey car park provides 390 
spaces and is adjacent to Park Road South, connecting the main town 
centre retail area along West Street.  

 
1.2  Since the Covid pandemic, over 50% of the car park is unused (like the 

Meridian centre car park) and is regularly targeted by antisocial 
behaviour and vandalism. The car park generates net income of 
around £30,000 per annum after taking account of all running costs 
from turnover of around £77,000. The car park does however require a 
further £335,000 of planned preventative measures to maintain usage 
in the near future.  

 
1.3  Nationally there is a real need for more housing of all forms and the 

Bulbeck Road site presents an excellent opportunity to deliver housing 
in a central location with excellent links to public transport. 

  

1.4 The Council appointed Turley to advise on the development of its 
Housing Strategy. According to research by Turley in March 2023, the 
data from which supports the Housing Strategy being developed by 
Patrick Lee, Executive Head of Housing and Communities.  Future 
housing requirements to support existing residents are projected to 
increase by 15199 (0.5% per annum) by 2043: 

 
• The Turley report 3 suggests the overall number of new homes 

needed in Havant up to 2043, is at least 516 dwellings per 
annum. This calculation is– based on the Government’s 
standard method for calculating housing need. 

 
• Data supplied by the Council suggests that approximately 231 

affordable homes could become available each year, most 
having one or two bedrooms. This is evidently lower than the 
estimated gross need of 601, meaning that there is a residual 
net need for a further 370 affordable homes per annum to 2043.  

 
• There is additional demand up to 2043 for  

• Sheltered housing 1221 (average 53 per annum) 
• Enhanced sheltered housing 195 (average 8 per annum) 
• Extra care units with 24/7 support 244 (average 11 per 

annum) 
 

Page 7



 
 
 
 

(1)  

1.5  It should also be noted that the demand for temporary housing is 
increasing, and the Council may be around a £1m overspent for 
2023/24.  

 

2.0    Background 

2.1  The Council were successful in bidding for the Department for Levelling 
Up, Housing and Community (DLUHC) Brownfield Release Fund 2 
(BLFR2) in October 2022. The Council were awarded £1.65m for the 
demolition and remediation of the Bulbeck Road Car Park site in order 
to help address viability issues in bringing the site forward for 
residential development. 

2.2 The conditions of the DLUHC grant state that the Council needs to 
release the land by the end of March 2026. 

2.3  The Council’s application for the BLFR2 was supported by a sketch 
  book developed by Fabrik master planners, the sketch book prepared 
  an initial 91 dwelling scheme for the site, however this is not a  

condition of the grant.   

• Following the successful application, the above scheme was 
assessed on the basis of a privately funded scheme, developed 
either by Havant Borough Council, or developed by a private 
developer. External quantity surveyors and development 
surveyors provided development appraisals for Fabrik’s 91 
dwelling scheme, to assess its financial viability. This was found 
that a build for sale scheme would not to be financially viable in 
the current market. 
 

• Further hypothetical schemes of 150, 75, 63, 53 and 43 
dwellings were also assessed, using the 91 dwellings scheme 
design information. These were also found not to be financially 
viable. The larger the project was the greater the financial 
deficit. 
 

• A local architect was commissioned to redesign a scheme of 
around 50 dwellings – see Appendix 1.  This would meet the 
minimum BCR viability of the DHLUC BLFR2 grant.  Instruction 
was for it to be designed as economic in design as possible, 
however, still considered capable of achieving planning 
permission. Again, two further hypothetical schemes of 43 and 
63 dwellings were also assessed, extrapolating the 53 dwellings 
scheme design information.  These schemes were also found 
not to be financially viable in the current market on a build for 
sale basis. 

Page 8



 
 
 
 

(1)  

 

3.0 Options for development 

3.1  The Council has considered a number of financial options as well as 
 ‘do nothing’. The Council have looked at the site with a view to trying to 
  find the most advantageous way of exploring the site including looking 
 at maximising a capital receipt from the land and providing the 
  maximum amount of housing. It has looked at a number of different 
 solutions and the advantages and disadvantages of each option are 
 considered below. 
 
3.2      Option 1 - Do nothing (do not demolish the car park and return the 

£1,650,000 grant to DLUHC)  

(+) (-) 

• Continued availability of 390 No 
parking spaces. 

• Additional resources available to 
be directed towards other 
regeneration led projects. 

• Retention of freehold and long 
leasehold interests. 

• No disruption to the surrounding 
businesses and residents 

• Return funding to DHLUC 
• Existing and increasing levels of 

anti-social behaviour issues will 
continue. 

• The structure of the car park is 
going to require significant 
investment to remain operational 
and measures to reduce anti-
social behaviour.  >£1m 
expenditure required over years 
1-3. 

• Given the increased costs 
associated with operating the car 
park, it will run at a loss. 

• No provision of housing delivered. 
• Reputational damage with 

DLUHC, potential investors and 
the community 

• Could impact the Council’s 
success at securing future 
funding opportunities. 

• Failure to ‘kickstart’ the wider 
Havant town centre regeneration 
programme 

 

3.3  Option 2 – Build to sell 

(+) (-) 

• Remove existing anti-social 
behaviour issues 

• Removal of 390 No parking 
spaces. 

Page 9



 
 
 
 

(1)  

• Utilises BLFR2 grant funding 
• Creates new housing stock 
• Positive move towards 

regeneration in Havant Town 
Centre 

• Great central location to all of 
Havant’s amenities including 
travel 

• Additional income will be realised 
at the Meridian Centre Car Park 

• Financial viability issues arise 
based upon appraisals 
undertaken. 

• Doesn’t help the current 
temporary housing needs in the 
borough 

• Non financially viable unless 
HBC fund   viability gap. 

• Need to provide 30% affordable 
units. 

 

3.4  Option 3 – Build to rent 

(+) (-) 

• Remove existing anti-social 
behaviour issues. 

• Utilises BLFR2 grant funding 
• Creates new housing stock 
• Positive move towards 

regeneration in Havant Town 
Centre 

• Great central location to all of 
Havant’s amenities' including 
transport 

• Additional income will be realised 
at Meridian Centre Car Park 

• Removal of 390 No parking 
spaces. 

• Financial viability issues arise 
based upon appraisals 
undertaken  

• Non financially viable unless the 
Council  fund viability gap 

• No proven build to rent market 
within the town centre. 

• Need to provide 30% affordable 
units. 

 

3.5 Option 4 – 100% Affordable Development  

(+) (-) 

• Remove existing anti-social 
behaviour issues 

• Utilises BLFR2 grant funding 
• Creates new housing stock 
• Positive move towards 

regeneration in the Borough 
• Registered Housing Associations 

(RHA’s) have access to grant 
funding that a private developer 
doesn’t 

• Removal of 390 No parking 
spaces. 

• Financial viability may not be an 
issue given availability of third-
party funding. 

 

Page 10



 
 
 
 

(1)  

• Great central location to all of 
Havant’s amenities’ including 
transport 

• Additional income will be realised 
at Meridian Car Park. 

 

NB: Initial discussion indicate that some Registered Housing Associations (RHAs)  are capable 
of developing the site and are prepared to pay a higher purchase price for the site to Havant 
Borough Council given the ‘special purchaser’ scenario that may exist. 

 

3.6   Option 5 – Build for Later living (not a care home) 

(+) 

• Remove existing anti-social 
behaviour issues 

• Utilises BLFR2 grant funding 
• Creates new housing stock 
• Positive move towards 

regeneration in the Borough 
• Great central location to all of 

Havant’s amenities’ including 
transport 

• Additional income will be realised 
at Meridian Car Park. 

 

(-) 

• Removal of 390 No parking 
spaces. 

• Financial viability issues arise 
based upon appraisals 
undertaken. 

• Doesn’t help the current 
temporary/permanent housing 
needs for all age groups within 
HBC. 

• Non financially viable unless 
HBC fund viability gap. 

 

 

NB: Discussions have also taken place with Later Living developers.  One has formally responded by 
saying the site is too small to develop 

4.0  Appointing of a local agent 
 
In order to attract the best developers an agent who is locally based but with 

 national presence will be appointed at an estimated fee of £30,000 to advise 
 on disposal having regard to ensuring ‘best consideration is obtained under 
 s123 LGA 1972’.   

 
5.0   Conditions of sale. 

The Council need to ensure that it not only gets best consideration for the 
asset, but also ensures that conditions of sale are set that prevent the site 
sitting dormant for years. The Council proposes to dispose the site with 
conditions that for example would set a timescale for obtaining a planning 
permission and completion of construction on the site. 

Examples could be: 
Page 11



 
 
 
 

(1)  

a. Tenure – Freehold or long lease hold   
b. Density and specification of proposed accommodation including 

parking requirements.  These will either meet or exceed HBC’s 
planning policies.  

c. Timescales for obtaining planning permission within 12 month of 
title transfer and development completed within 3 years from a 
successful planning permission being granted.  

6.0 Next stage for Bulbeck Road Demolition  

6.1  It is recommended the Council demolishes the multi storey car park 
 utilising the BLFR2 grant, which will include the crushing of the slab 
 and backfilling. Then complete remediation works (if required). Site will 
 not have any services to it. 

     6.2 Timeline 

➢ Prior planning approval for demolition which started end of Nov – 
Jan 2024 

➢ Planning process between February and April 2024  
➢ Demolition starts May 2024 onwards 
➢ Agent appointed to market the site February 2024 
➢ Negotiation and Conditional sale of Site agreed Summer 2024 

 
7.0 Relationship to the Corporate Strategy 

7.1 The redevelopment of the Bulbeck Road Multi-Storey Car Park  
 is a corporate priority project included in the list of initiatives in  
 the Growth theme of the Corporate Strategy. The disposal of the  
 site after demolition could ensure that this priority is delivered.  

7.2 There are also links to the Pride in Place theme through housing  
 delivery and improvement of our town centres.  

8.0  Conclusion 

8.1 It is recommended that the Council should demolish Bulbeck Road multi 
storey car park, which includes crushing of the slab (base) and 
backfilling.  The site would not have any services to it.  Following 
demolition, remediation work would be completed. 

8.2 The best way to achieve ‘best consideration’ for the site is to   
 appoint a locally based national agent to provide a marketing  
 and disposal report for the site (freehold or long leasehold   
 interest) (subject to agreed conditionality). Offers from interested  
 parties to be invited on a conditional and unconditional basis in  
 order that they can be analysed and evaluated on an open and  
 transparent basis. 

Page 12



 
 
 
 

(1)  

8.3   Following receipt of offers, after allowing for a reasonable   
 marketing period, these can be evaluated in an open a   
 transparent way and further recommendations reported. 

9.0 Implications and Comments 

9.1  S151 Comments 

9.1.1 Members should be content that the demolition of Bulbeck Road car 
park will have no additional impact on the Council’s revenue budget. 
The clearing of the site forms part of the Council’s regeneration plans 
and has the potential to unlock either improved service delivery, reduce 
revenue costs/pressures, improve local economic conditions or a 
combination of all three (depending on any decision over future use).  

9.2 Financial Implications 

9.2.1 The financial implications of the recommendations is that the  
 Council keeps its obligations under the grant agreement and helps to 
 bring forward a development. This could result in a capital           
 receipt for the Council and much needed housing in the Borough.  

9.2.2  The demolition of the car park will be funded from external grant.  

9.2.3   Any capital receipt generated from the disposal of the site will be a 
capital resource as set out in the Council Capital Strategy and may be 
used for capital purposes only. 

9.2.4   The current car park generates a small surplus currently; it is 
anticipated that this income will be achieved from displacement to the 
nearby Meridian Centre car park. 

9.2.5   The cost of the advice on disposal will be funded from a previous 
release from the Regeneration Reserve. 

9.3  Monitoring Officer Comments 

 The Council has the power to dispose of land providing it is compliant 
with the obligation to achieve best value. The Council is undertaking 
appropriate to steps to consider all viable options and allow an 
informed decision in accordance with the legislation.  

9.4  Legal Implications 

Under Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 the Council has 
the power to dispose of land providing it is compliant with the obligation 
to achieve best consideration. There are certain rules relating to 
proposed disposals at less than best consideration.  

Under s111 of the Local Government Act 1972 the Council has the 
power to do anything incidental to the exercise of its functions.  

Page 13



 
 
 
 

(1)  

Under section 1 of the Localism Act 2011, the Council has a broad 
range of powers to do anything that is individuals may do, subject to 
certain exceptions not applicable. 

9.5  Equality and Diversity 

There are no specific implications arising directly from this report.  

9.6  Human Resources 

There are no specific implications arising directly from this report.  

9.7  Information Governance 

 There are no specific implications arising directly from this report. 

9.8       Climate and Environment 

Funding from BRLF2 will assist with any remediation works to ensure   
it is cleaned for residential occupation.   

Agreed specification and designs will have regard to Required planning 
legal requirements.  

An experienced local company, Hughes & Salvidge of Portsmouth, 
 have been secured for the demolition work. Once preliminary surveys 
 of the site are complete, an extensive recycling regime will be followed 
 with the demolition of the car park. Elements include recycling 100% of 
 recovered metal and the segregation of plastics, polystyrene, glass, 
 fibreglass and plasterboard for recycling where appropriate. Concrete, 
 bricks and masonry from the site will be crushed and compacted on 
 site to backfill on site, with surplus material being taken for re-use  
  elsewhere. 
 

Hughes & Salvidge will limit noise, vibration and dust during the 
demolition process as far as possible.  
 

10.0  Risks 

10.1  Key risks are below: 

Risk Impact 
Do nothing – reputation with 
community and DLUHC  

Engagement with future projects, 
wider programme and funding 
opportunities are impacted affecting 
their success. 

Do nothing – extensive repair and 
maintenance costs  

Repair and maintenance costs 
outstrip income in the long-term. 

Disposal - Planning permissions for 
development not granted 

Empty site is an eyesore that could 
attract anti-social behaviour. 

Page 14



 
 
 
 

(1)  

Council’s reputation with community 
and DLUHC is negatively impacted.  

Disposal - Market value and appetite 
for development is lower than 
anticipated 

Site is sold for lower value than 
modelled but homes required are 
provided to local area.  If no offers 
are received site remains unsold, 
until property market improves. 

Disposal - Inflation and other market 
factors increase the construction costs 

Viability of the project is affected and 
potentially delayed or abandoned. 

Disposal - Cost of remediation Could delay disposal of site and 
threaten viability.  

Failure to meet grant deadlines Impact on reputation with DLUHC 
and potential claw back of funding. 

 

11.0  Consultation 

11.1  Resident and businesses will be consulted once there is a plan and          
 understanding of the development by the developer(s)/purchaser, as 

part of the planning application process. 
 

12.0  Communications 
12.1   A methodology to communicate the decision on the Bulbeck Road site     

will consider the following: 

• Removal of existing signage and promotional materials 
• Press releases and associated social media content to update 

residents and businesses at key points – dependent on the decision 
made - such as: 

o Release at the time of decision 
o The start date of demolition 
o The site being put up for sale 
o The end date of demolition 
o Confirmation of the sale, the new owner and the expectation for 

the development (i.e. terms and conditions of the site and 
expected turnaround). 

• Replacement signage on the Bulbeck Road site, working on the 
assumption of installation on 2.4m high timber hoardings. 

• Additional large format posters and other promotional materials on 
display through Havant town centre 

• Based on current quotes, a budget of £3,300 will be required for the 
above. 

 

Agreed and signed off by: Date: 

Cabinet Lead: Alex 
Rennie 

Alex Rennie 16th January 2024 

Page 15



 
 
 
 

(1)  

 

Executive Head: 
Wayne Layton 

Wayne Layton 16th January 2024 

Monitoring Officer: 
Jo McIntosh 

Jo McIntosh 16th January 2024 

Section151 Officer: 
Steven Pinks 

Steven Pinks 16th January 2024 

 

 

Page 16



SKETCHBOOK
DECEMBER 2021

BULBECK ROAD, HAVANT

P
age 17



PEDESTRIAN & CYCLE-
FRIENDLY STREET AWAY 
FROM THROUGH-TRAFFIC

BULBECK ROAD 
CAR PARK SITE

PUBLIC REALM 
AND LANDSCAPE 
ENHANCEMENTS

MERIDIAN PLACE

INTERIM-
ILLUSTRATIVE 
TOWN CENTRE 
MASTERPLAN

0                                     50m

P
age 18



TOWN CENTRE

EL
M

 P
A

RK
 R

O
A

D

LE
IG

H
  R

O
A

D

BILLY TRAIL

WEST STREET

BI
LL

Y 
TR

A
IL

THE PALLANT

FA
IR

FIE
LD

 R
O

AD

WATERLOO ROAD

SO
U

TH
 S

TR
EE

T

HAVANT TOWN 
CENTRE VISION

0                                     50m

P
age 19



BULBECK ROAD - 
TESTING LAYOUT

ENTRANCE TO 
GROUND FLOOR 
PARKING AREA

PODIUM GARDEN AT 
FIRST FLOOR WITH 
PARKING BELOW

RESIDENTIAL 
(6 STOREYS)

RESIDENTIAL 
(5 STOREYS)

PUBLIC REALM 
TREATMENT

ROOFTOP 
GARDENS

A
B

CD

ROOFTOP 
GARDENS

NEW PUBLIC REALM 
LANDSCAPING & 

PLANTING

NEW RESIDENTIAL 
WITH GROUND 

FLOOR CAR 
PARKING

RESIDENTIAL 
(4 STOREYS)

RESIDENTIAL 
(3 STOREYS)

RESIDENTIAL 
(4 STOREYS)

RESIDENTIAL 
(4 STOREYS)

0                     20m

P
age 20



GROUND FLOOR
APPROX AREAS
BLOCK A - 158 M2

BLOCK B - 510 M2

BLOCK C - 354 M2

BLOCK D - 210 M2

CAR PARKING AREA - 1,060 M2

NOTE - PARKING AREA COULD BE 
REDUCED TO ALLOCATE MORE AREA 
FOR CYCLE PARKING OR DEDICATED 
ELECTRIC PARKING

BIN / CYCLE STORES - 200 M2

CAR PARKING - 
18 SPACES
6 DISABLED ACCESS SPACES

BUILDING CORE / 
CIRCULATION

BIN / CYCLE STORES

GROUND FLOOR APARTMENTS 
WITH STREET ACCESS

0                     20m

A B

C
D

P
age 21



TYPICAL FLOOR

A B

APPROX AREAS
BLOCK A - 451 M2 PER FLOOR
BLOCK B - 575 M2  PER FLOOR
BLOCK C - 385 M2 PER FLOOR
BLOCK D - 430 M2 PER FLOOR

PODIUM GARDEN FOR 
APARTMENTS AT FIRST FLOOR

BUILDING CORE / 
CIRCULATION

LOWER GROUND PRIVATE 
SPACE FOR APARTMENTS

0                     20m

NOTE - THE TYPICAL FLOOR REPRESENTS THE FIRST, SECOND FLOOR AND 
OCCASIONAL THIRD FLOOR FOOTPRINTS. GROUND AND ROOFTOP 
FLOOR PLATES ARE SMALLER WHERE SETBACKS FOR TERRACES OR 
PARKING IS SHOWN.

C
D

P
age 22



ROOF PLAN

A
B

APPROX AREAS
BLOCK A - 240 M2

BLOCK B - 360 M2  

BLOCK C - 200 M2

BLOCK D - 250 M2

ROOFTOP BALCONIES

BUILDING CORE / 
CIRCULATION

6 STOREYS

5 STOREYS

4 STOREYS

3 STOREYS

3 STOREYS

4 STOREYS

4 STOREYS

ROOFTOP GARDENS

C
D

0                     20m

P
age 23



1	 RESIDENTIAL/OFFICE SPACE ABOVE GROUND 
FLOOR RETAIL/LEISURE

2	 A STRONG FRONTAGE TO OVERLOOK PUBLIC 
REALM

3	 CORNER BUILDINGS ARE ACTIVE ON BOTH SIDES

4	 PASSIVE SURVEILLANCE OF PUBLIC SPACES

5	 VARIED MATERIALS PALETTE IN LOCALITY

6	 VARIED MATERIALS REFLECTING LOCAL 
VERNACULAR

7	 MIXED USES MAY EXTEND INTO THE SECOND FLOOR 
IF REQUIRED

8	 APARTMENT BLOCK MASS BROKEN DOWN BY 
ARCHITECTURAL INTERVENTIONS

9	 STEPPED BUILDING FORM PROVIDING VISUAL 
INTEREST AND OPPORTUNITIES FOR ROOFTOP 
GARDENS

4 5 6

7 8 9

1 2 3

PRECEDENT IMAGERY 

BUILT FORM

P
age 24



7 4 5

1 2 2 3

1	 WIDENED PEDESTRIAN PATH ALLOWS SPACE FOR TREE 
PLANTING, SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE AND SEATING 

2	 LOW MAINTENANCE PLANTING PROVIDES BIODIVERSITY TO 
THE URBAN ENVIRONMENT 

3	 SCULPTURAL PLANTERS 

4	 RAISED CONCRETE EDGES 

5	 BANDED PAVING

PRECEDENT IMAGERY

STREETSCAPE

P
age 25



7

1 2 2

PRECEDENT IMAGERY 

4

1	 INTEGRATED PLANTER BOX BALUSTRADE AND VISTAS 

2	 PERGOLA AND DECKING 

3	 RAISED PLANTERS WITH SEATING AND FIREPIT

4	 OUTDOOR SEATING AND DINING 

3

ROOF TERRACES 
& GARDENS

P
age 26



SUMMARY

0                     20m

bins & bikes

8 accessible
parking
spaces

13 standard
parking spaces

268.3m2

366.4m2

E -
299.7m2

A - 389.9m2

B -
commercial
424.5m2

156m2

169.1m2
C - 251.3m2

B - resi
366.4m2

251.3m2

D - 437.4m2

18 standard
parking spaces

6 accessible
parking
spaces

A - 158m2

C - 354m2

B - resi
534.2m2

D - 210m2

A - 451m2

C - 385m2

B - resi
575m2

D - 430m2

C -200m2

B - resi
360m2

A - 451m2

C - 385m2

B - resi
575m2

D - 430m2

GF

1ST

2ND

B - resi
575m2

3RD

A - 240m2

D-250m2

C - 385m2

4TH

B - resi
360m2

5TH

0 2 10 15 20 25 35 50m

1:500

5

GROUND

FIRST

SECOND

THIRD

FOURTH

FIFTH

HAVANT BULBECK ROAD

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Block No. storeys Floor Use
Floor Area (M2 

GEA)
TOTAL GEA 

M2

TOTAL GIA 
M2

TOTAL GIA 
SQFT

TOTAL NIA 
M2

TOTAL NIA 
SQFT

Unit Split No. units APARTMENT BLOCK
BULBECK ROAD CAR PARK 1BED 20% 55 sqm
A 4 GF RESI FLAT 158 1,300 1,235 13,293 988 10,635 1 bed 4 2BED 80% 65 sqm

1 451 2 bed 12 3BED 0% 85 sqm
2 451
3 240 Ap Total 16

B 6 GF RESI FLAT 510 3,170 3,012 32,415 2,409 25,932 1 bed 9
1 575 2 bed 30
2 575
3 575 Ap Total 38
4 575
5 360 91

C 5 GF RESI FLAT 354 1,709 1,624 17,476 1,299 13,981 1 bed 5        
1 385 2 bed 16
2 385
3 385
4 200 Ap Total 21

D 4 GF RESI FLAT 210 1,320 1,254 13,498 1,003 10,798 1 bed 4
1 430 2 bed 12
2 430
3 250 Ap Total 16

TOTALS 7,499 7,124 76,683 5,699 61,346 91

CAR PARKING FOR FLATS 1,060 spaces 24
BIN / CYCLE STORES 200

RESIDENTIAL SCHEME TOTALS
ELEMENT GEA M2 GIA M2 (95%) GIA ft2 (95%) NIA M2 (80%) NIA ft2 (80%) UNITS
Apartments 7,499 7,124 76,683 5,699 61,346 90.9
TOTAL 7,499 7,124 76,683 5,699 61,346 90.9

09/12/2021 10:36

HAVANT BULBECK ROAD

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Block No. storeys Floor Use
Floor Area (M2 

GEA)
TOTAL GEA 

M2

TOTAL GIA 
M2

TOTAL GIA 
SQFT

TOTAL NIA 
M2

TOTAL NIA 
SQFT

Unit Split No. units APARTMENT BLOCK
BULBECK ROAD CAR PARK 1BED 20% 55 sqm
A 4 GF RESI FLAT 158 1,300 1,235 13,293 988 10,635 1 bed 4 2BED 80% 65 sqm

1 451 2 bed 12 3BED 0% 85 sqm
2 451
3 240 Ap Total 16

B 6 GF RESI FLAT 510 3,170 3,012 32,415 2,409 25,932 1 bed 9
1 575 2 bed 30
2 575
3 575 Ap Total 38
4 575
5 360 91

C 5 GF RESI FLAT 354 1,709 1,624 17,476 1,299 13,981 1 bed 5        
1 385 2 bed 16
2 385
3 385
4 200 Ap Total 21

D 4 GF RESI FLAT 210 1,320 1,254 13,498 1,003 10,798 1 bed 4
1 430 2 bed 12
2 430
3 250 Ap Total 16

TOTALS 7,499 7,124 76,683 5,699 61,346 91

CAR PARKING FOR FLATS 1,060 spaces 24
BIN / CYCLE STORES 200

RESIDENTIAL SCHEME TOTALS
ELEMENT GEA M2 GIA M2 (95%) GIA ft2 (95%) NIA M2 (80%) NIA ft2 (80%) UNITS
Apartments 7,499 7,124 76,683 5,699 61,346 90.9
TOTAL 7,499 7,124 76,683 5,699 61,346 90.9

09/12/2021 10:36
HAVANT BULBECK ROAD

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE

Block No. storeys Floor Use
Floor Area (M2 

GEA)
TOTAL GEA 

M2

TOTAL GIA 
M2

TOTAL GIA 
SQFT

TOTAL NIA 
M2

TOTAL NIA 
SQFT

Unit Split No. units APARTMENT BLOCK
BULBECK ROAD CAR PARK 1BED 20% 55 sqm
A 4 GF RESI FLAT 158 1,300 1,235 13,293 988 10,635 1 bed 4 2BED 80% 65 sqm

1 451 2 bed 12 3BED 0% 85 sqm
2 451
3 240 Ap Total 16

B 6 GF RESI FLAT 510 3,170 3,012 32,415 2,409 25,932 1 bed 9
1 575 2 bed 30
2 575
3 575 Ap Total 38
4 575
5 360 91

C 5 GF RESI FLAT 354 1,709 1,624 17,476 1,299 13,981 1 bed 5        
1 385 2 bed 16
2 385
3 385
4 200 Ap Total 21

D 4 GF RESI FLAT 210 1,320 1,254 13,498 1,003 10,798 1 bed 4
1 430 2 bed 12
2 430
3 250 Ap Total 16

TOTALS 7,499 7,124 76,683 5,699 61,346 91

CAR PARKING FOR FLATS 1,060 spaces 24
BIN / CYCLE STORES 200

RESIDENTIAL SCHEME TOTALS
ELEMENT GEA M2 GIA M2 (95%) GIA ft2 (95%) NIA M2 (80%) NIA ft2 (80%) UNITS
Apartments 7,499 7,124 76,683 5,699 61,346 90.9
TOTAL 7,499 7,124 76,683 5,699 61,346 90.9

09/12/2021 10:36

TYPICAL APARTMENT 
SIZES & MIX

91 NEW APARTMENTS

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Disposal of Bulbeck Road Multi Storey Car Park
	Appendix 1 - Bulbeck Road Sketch Book


